In high school baseball all starters may leave and re-enter once. So, the starting pitcher may leave the game and later re-enter one time. The key issue now revolves around the issue of whether or not that starting pitcher can re-enter as a pitcher. 

Well, as with so many rules, the answer is not a simple yes or no. The rules are not specific about this issue, but they provide conditions and restrictions that accumulatively determine the answer.  As long as certain conditions and restrictions have been met, a starting pitcher may leave and re-enter as a pitcher.  

The first and most obvious condition is the charged conference rule. If a pitcher has to be replaced because his team had more than three defensive charged conferences in seven innings, or more than one defensive charged conference per inning in extra innings, he could not re-enter as a pitcher. 

The second restriction on a pitcher substitution is that once the line-up is official, the starting pitcher must pitch until the first opposing batter has been put out or advanced to first base or he cannot re-enter as a pitcher. The pitcher may be pinch-hit for in his offensive half of one inning and then re-enter to pitch in the in the very next defensive half of an inning, and he still must face one batter. If a he does not face one batter, he may play another position but he cannot pitch the remainder of that game.  This may require some examples:

1) If the visiting pitcher is pinch hit for in the top of an inning, he may come back to pitch in the bottom of that inning.  However, in the unlikely event that he was pinch hit for twice in same inning, then he cannot come back to pitch.

2) The same is true of the home team pitcher in that he may be pinch hit for in the bottom of the inning and come back to pitch in the top of the next inning. (Unless he was pinch hit for twice).

3) If a STARTING pitcher begins an inning in any other position (ie SS) and the replacement pitcher, due to injury during warm-ups or the coach’s change of mine, does not pitch to the first batter, then the STARTING pitcher may return to pitch.  However this rule is negated if the initial relieving pitcher or any other relieving pitchers combine for 9 or more warm up pitches, then the STARTING pitcher may not return to the mound for the remainder of the game.  (Relief pitchers are allowed 8 warm up pitches only).

4) The STARTING pitcher may enjoy an inning or two on the bench, but can only come back to pitch in relief of the pitcher who relieved him.  If Tom starts the game and Bob comes in in relief while Tom sits for two innings, Tom can come back in on the mound for Bob.  If Joe comes in for Bob after an inning or two, Tom can come back into the game for Joe, but not as a pitcher.

5) If the STARTING pitcher is pinch-hit for, then relieved on the mound in the very first defensive inning after being pinch hit for, he may re-enter according to the normal re-entry rules but not as a pitcher.

The third condition to remember is that if a pitcher is replaced while his team is on defense, his substitute must pitch to the batter then at bat (or his substitute) or until that batter is out, reaches first base or a third out is made. So if Bob comes in to relieve, he cannot simply pick off the runner on first for the second out and go back to the bench. He still must face the batter or pick off another runner for the third out. We would allow Bob to be removed without meeting this condition if he were injured, incapacitated or guilty of flagrant unsportsmanlike conduct. He just could never pitch again in that game. Also remember that the plate umpire MUST deny any request for a charged defensive conference that would by rule cause the pitcher or substitute pitcher to be removed before the conditions of facing a batter or a third out, etc, are met. 

 The condition that causes the most confusion concerns how a pitcher may be removed and return to pitch in the same inning. Specifically, the confusion lies with a pitcher who trades positions during one inning. A pitcher may be removed and return as a pitcher once per inning, providing the return does not violate rules of substitution (re-entry), charged conferences or another pitching restriction.

Here is an example of how it works: Tom starts the inning on the mound and faces one batter.  The next batter has already tagged Tom for two home runs and the coach doesn’t want to give up a third so he switches the first basement Bill with Tom on the mound.  Bill gets his batter out and Coach switches Bill back to first and Tom is allowed to come back and pitch again.  Tom pitches to one more batter and Coach decides to make the Tom-Bill switch again.  This is allowed, but Tom is now done as a pitcher (he has had his one re-entry per inning and is not allowed to pitch for the remainder of the game.)  Bill pitches to one batter and Coach now wants to switch him with Jim who’s playing right field.  This is also allowed, but not Jim is done pitching for the day, because he has had his one re-entry per inning just like Tom.  However, just to make this more confusing, this whole example is messed up if either Bill or Jim takes more than 8 pitchers to warm up.  Then who ever they relieved are done for the day.

Continuing the example, if Tom starts the inning and Bill comes in off the bench to relive him, Tom cannot return to pitch.  If Tom starts the inning and Coach switches him with Bill on first, the Jim comes off the bench to relieve Bill, Tom cannot return to pitch (can only relieve the pitcher who relieved him).

An important part of the restriction to remember is the condition that if a substitute pitcher takes more than eight warm-up pitches, the pitcher he replaced cannot return to pitch in that game. He can play another position, he just cannot pitch.

It is easy to understand why Coaches and Umpires are confused by this rule.  Most umpires simply do not track warm up pitches.  Most umpires (and coaches) find this convoluted applications of several part of the substitution rule to define a single answer, difficult to follow.  In the end, the call is whatever the umpire makes it because if the umpire or any of the coaches haven’t tracked warm up pitches, then it becomes a judgment call.  It may be best, for the Program Director to use his authority and establish an OMGAA rule that supercedes the High School Rule (just like we do with batting the full roster).

Hope this helps,

Mike P.

